

Agenda Item 2.1.1

CWM TAF MORGANNWG UNIVERSITY HEALTH BOARD

 ‘CONFIRMED’ MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING, PERFORMANCE & FINANCE COMMITTEE HELD ON 4 MAY 2023, AS A VIRTUAL MEETING WHICH WAS HELD VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS

PRESENT
Mel Jehu
   

-
Independent Member (Chair)
Nicola Milligan

-
Independent Member
Patsy Roseblade

-
Independent Member

Ian Wells


-
Independent Member

Carolyn Donoghue
-
Independent Member

Geraint Hopkins 

-
Independent Member 
Jonathan Morgan 

- 
Health Board Chair (Observing)

IN ATTENDANCE 

Linda Prosser

-
Executive Director of Strategy & 
Transformation 
Sally May


-
Executive Director of Finance & 

Procurement
Gethin Hughes 

-
Chief Operating Officer 

Sarah James 

-
Deputy Chief Operating Officer (in-

part)
Stuart Morris 

-
Director of Digital
Sallie Davies 

-
Deputy Medical Director
Lauren Edwards

-
Executive Director of Therapies & 
Health Sciences 

Julie Denley 

- 
Director of Primary, Community & 

Mental Health 

Emma Samways

-
Internal Audit and Assurance 
(Observing)
Paul Dalton 

-
Internal Audit and Assurance 

(Observing)

Wendy Penrhyn-Jones
-
Head of Corporate Governance & 

Board Business 

Kathrine Davies 

- 
Corporate Governance Manager
(Meeting Secretariat)
PART 1. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

1.1.0
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting including Jonathan Morgan, Health Board Chair who was observing the meeting, Emma Samways and Paul Dalton, Internal Audit. 

1.2.0
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Dom Hurford, Medical Director. 
1.3.0
DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS



There were none declared. 
PART 2. CONSENT AGENDA 

2.1 FOR APPROVAL

2.1.1
‘UNCONFIRMED’ MINUTES OF THE PLANNING, PERFORMANCE & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 28 FEBRUARY 2023
Resolution: The minutes were APPROVED as a true and accurate record. 
2.1.2
‘UNCONFIRMED’ MINUTES OF THE PLANNING, PERFORMANCE & FINANCE IN COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 28 FEBRUARY 2023
Resolution: The minutes were APPROVED as a true and accurate record. 

2.1.3
‘UNCONFIRMED’ MINUTES OF THE EXTRA ORDINARY PLANNING, PERFORMANCE & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 22 MARCH 2023

Resolution: The minutes were APPROVED as a true and accurate record. 

2.1.4
‘UNCONFIRMED’ MINUTES OF THE EXTRA ORDINARY PLANNING, PERFORMANCE & FINANCE IN COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 22 MARCH 2023

Resolution: The minutes were APPROVED as a true and accurate record. 

2.1.5
AMENDMENT TO THE STANDING ORDERS – REVISED TERMS OF REFERENCE 
Resolution: The Revised Terms of Reference were ENDORSED FOR BOARD APPROVAL
2.2 FOR NOTING
2.2.1
MONTHLY MONITORING RETURNS TO WELSH GOVERNMENT 

Resolution: The Committee NOTED the Monitoring Returns for Month 11.

2.2.2
ACTION LOG  

P. Roseblade commented that there were a number of old completed actions on the log and suggested they were removed to leave a succinct note of current actions.  The Chair agreed with this suggestion which would be processed for the next meeting. 
Resolution: The Committee NOTED the Action Log.  
Action:
Action Log to be reviewed prior to next meeting.  


3.0 MAIN AGENDA

3.1.0
MATTERS ARISING NOT PREVIOUSLY CONTAINED WITHIN THE ACTION LOG. 
There were none. 
4.0 GOVERANCE

4.1.0
ORGANISATIONAL RISK REGISTER 

W. Penrhyn-Jones presented the report that outlined the high-level organisational risks that had been assigned to the Committee, and highlighted the management actions being taken to manage or mitigate these high-level risks. 
N. Milligan noted the improvements and updates that had been made and referred to risk 4458, Emergency Department Metrics that had not been updated since November 2022.  G. Hughes advised that they were currently updating their risks as part of the Targeted Intervention actions and therefore the risk would updated as part of that and therefore a current position would be available for the next meeting.  

P. Roseblade referred to Risk 4772 regarding the Laundry and queried whether the software been updated successfully.  G. Hughes agreed to verify this outside of the meeting and would share the update with the Committee. 

C. Donoghue referred to Risk 4491 which referenced work being undertaken in April, May and June 2023 and suggested that this be updated to reflect the current position.  G. Hughes advised that he would ensure this was updated in readiness for the next meeting. 
I. Wells suggested that it would be helpful if updates were clearly identified by a heading of ‘updates’ for future iterations of this report.   

P. Roseblade advised that the Audit & Risk Committee had noted that various risks required updating and there had been a commitment from the Executive Team that they would review the whole organisational risk register. 
P. Roseblade commented that at the previous Board Development Session there had been a discussion on whether to introduce an issues log along side the risk register and she sought an update on this.  W. Penrhyn-Jones advised that she would raise this outside of the meeting. 
Resolution: The report was NOTED. 

Action:
Risks being undertaken as part of TI process to be updated for next meeting. 

Action:
Update required regarding Laundry Risk 4772 by the next meeting.
Action:
Update required on risk 4491 by the next meeting. 

Action: 
Consideration be given to the value of introducing an issues log alongside the Risk Register.  

4.2.0
ENHANCED MONITORING & IMPROVING CARE 

L. Prosser provided a presentation to the Committee on the current position with regard to Enhanced Monitoring and Improving Care.  

Resolution: The presentation was NOTED. 

5.0 IMPROVING CARE 
5.1.0 
PLANNED CARE RECOVERY PROGRAMME
G Hughes provided an update to the Committee on the overall progress, challenges, risks and operational schemes in relation to the Elective Recovery Portfolio of work including Cancer Performance. 
The Committee noted that two significant changes had been made in relation to Cancer in that the Women’s ‘One Stop’ Hub had opened in the Royal Glamorgan Hospital for a range of gynaecology conditions and that the Bridgend element of the ‘One Stop’ Breast service would relocate to the Snowdrop Centre on the Royal Glamorgan Hospital Site. 

G. Hopkins queried whether, looking forward into the longer term when the Llantrisant Health Park opened, what the impact would be on metrics that had been reported on. G. Hughes advised that it would make a huge impact.  He added that in 2023/24 they were anticipating additional capacity which would help patients at stage two and stage three which would eradicate the backlog for CT and MRI scans.  He advised that the theatre and endoscopy element would also come on stream in 2024-25 and the modelling had shown that a further six endoscopy rooms would be required, one in Prince Charles Hospital with the remainder based at the Llantrisant Health Park.  They were also adopting new technology that would eradicate the need to carry out the scans in an endoscopy room. 
I Wells referred to page five of the report where it referred to the Welsh Patient Administrative System (WPAS) and a plan being  needed to take this forward.  Ian Wells queried who would be undertaking that.  G. Hughes advised that they were currently looking at the pooled lists on WPAS which worked well in outpatients and he was working with the digital team to progress this.  
N. Milligan referred to page three and the section on the ‘WISE’ pain management services and requested an update on the success of the programme.  G. Hughes advised that was an evaluation being done with the pain service and would bring this back to the Committee once finalised. He added that it had been possible to move a significant amount of patients up the waiting list since the WISE programme had commenced particularly for those with chronic/enduring pain and also those suffering pain due to the  menopause. G. Hughes offered to discuss this further with Nicola Milligan outside the meeting. 
N. Milligan referred to the mention of ‘Cwm Taf’ on page five which should be reflected as ‘Cwm Taf Morgannwg’.  G. Hughes confirmed that this would be amended. 
N. Milligan referred to the recruitment issues in some areas and queried whether the opportunities for staff retention were being considered.   G. Hughes confirmed that they were and that there were specific areas in terms of recruitment and retention to ensure they have the right workforce for the future.  They were insourcing and trying to recruit and that insourcing was cost-effective. 

N. Milligan referred to page two in the Appendix where it stated that they would be unable to recruit Operating Department Practitioners (ODPs) outside of the annual streamlining recruitment process in September and queried what the difficulty was with the funding.  G. Hughes undertook to feedback outside the meeting.  
N. Milligan referred to page six which referred to vacancy scrutiny panels, staff fatigue and that they were holding-up vacancies.  G. Hughes advised that the vast majority of clinical posts did not go through vacancy panel and those that did were addressed every time.  He added that he would review the text in this part of the report as this was misleading as the real issue lay with poor management of vacancies on the Trac system.  
P. Roseblade referred to the Month 12 Finance Report where it  stated that Planned Care had overspent by just over £1m and queried whether this had been due to industrial action.  S. May confirmed that there had been some additional activity at the end of the year and they had adopted a pathway approach for outsourcing that had resulted in higher costs than initially expected. 
P. Roseblade referred to the CT and MRI scanning and queried whether there would be additional staff employed to read the results.  G. Hughes advised that the additional capacity would have to be managed with a service contract and would include the provision of some staff for reporting and also as part of the whole workload.  He added that they were using additional outsourcing capacity for scanning and reporting.  There was a small delay with reporting at this time and this was being addressed. 

P. Roseblade commented that she recognised that this was an all- Wales service and queried whether the new equipment had been planned purchases. L. Prosser advised that this had all been contained within the Annual Plan and the budget for radiology and endoscopy had also been discussed with Welsh Government.  She added that the planned care recovery fund had been top-sliced for regional delivery and all the trajectories were based on the assumption that they would receive those funds. In terms of the equipment, she advised that this was all part of the managed service. 
M. Jehu commented that having read the report it was clear the complexity of the work and the enormity of the pressure upon the staff involved and he extended thanks to the team for all their hard work in this respect.  

M. Jehu referred to the waiting times and queried whether they felt they were communicating effectively with the population as to the reasons for the long waiting times.  G. Hughes responded that certain services were better than others in staying in touch with their cohorts but offered assurance that waiting list validation was constantly underway which was helping to provide an estimate   to patients of the likely length of their waits.  G. Hughes added that when patients were offered the opportunity to go somewhere else to be seen sooner they do not always want to go to the alternative treatment site.  As a consequence steps had been taken to remove the hospital name from the initial referral letter from the waiting list team so that it now just made reference to a service rather than a particular hospital site.  
Resolution: The Report was NOTED.  
Action:
 To query the issue with funding for ODPs.
Action:
 To discuss the Pain Service outside of the meeting. 

5.2.0
INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD  

L. Prosser presented the report providing the Committee with a summary on performance against a number of key quality and performance indicators.
The Committee were advised that following the recent Board Development Workshop, a summary of what was discussed regarding the format and re-shaping of the Performance Dashboard had been sent out to members and feedback was awaited.  The Chair urged colleagues to respond as soon as possible. 
N. Milligan referred to page 26 in relation to the Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) that was not meeting the required target.  Nicola Milligan referred to an expected higher demand during the school exam period and queried whether patients were required to sit on the referral list for CAMHS or whether there an option to utilise other services for seasonal issues.  J. Denley advised that there were alternative options within schools for children and wellbeing which was seeing early progress. 
P. Roseblade referred to the immediate (ambulance) releases which was showing a vast improvement across all sites and congratulated the team. 
M. Jehu referred to the ambulance handover compliance rates that had fallen and queried whether there were plans in place to mitigate this.  In response, G. Hughes, advised that in terms of A&E four hour waits there was still lots more that needed to be done to  improve.  He said that he would circulate the figures for the last week of April 2023 which had decreased to 261.  He added that they continued to see a downtrend in hours lost and would add the graph to the chat bar so Members could review. 
C. Donoghue referred to stroke performance and commented that it was disappointing to see that no patients had been admitted within four hours and queried when they would expect to see an impact with the work being undertaken on the mitigating actions.  G. Hughes advised that they were hopeful that they would start to see improvements within the next six months.  He added that they had made a commitment to invest in stroke as part of the Integrated Medium Term Plan (IMTP). He advised that the Princess of Wales Hospital was still in a challenging position but that they had seen greater coherence at Prince Charles Hospital in getting patients on to the stroke ward in a timely way.

C. Donoghue added that at the ‘Safe to Start’ meeting held the previous week she had been very impressed with the collaboration and team work which provided an insight into the challenges on every shift including ensuring appropriate beds for stroke patients. 
Resolution: The report was NOTED
5.3.0
SPOTLIGHT: MENTAL HEALTH (Activity & Performance Data)

J. Denley presented the report providing the Committee with an update on the Mental Health and Learning Disabilities Care Group activity and performance. 

M. Jehu thanked J. Denley for a very comprehensive report. 


P. Roseblade referred to paragraph 2.2 and the 111 Press 2 service and queried whether they would have the capacity to deal with the patients who would be using this service and also would they be cross-referencing this with patients on the waiting lists. 


In response, J. Denley, advised that lots of modelling had been undertaken and they had also been discussing the point of access with the Care Group so that they could move capacity into that space as 80 percent of patients did not need mental health services within the community and they could provide alternative options for them. 


With regard to the waiting lists, J. Denley confirmed that they had not yet reviewed this but undertook to arrange this.  


P. Roseblade referred to psychological therapies and queried whether harm reviews were carried out on patients waiting over six months. J. Denley undertook to look at this outside of the meeting. 

P. Roseblade referred to the Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) and queried the number of patients that did not attend (DNA). J. Denley advised that she did not have the number to hand but would request this following today’s meeting. 

N. Milligan referred to page 4 and the referrals for CAMHS which was an enormous task for the teams and advised that it was really helpful to see that when they scrutinise compliance that they could see the amount of volume of referrals.  
M. Jehu thanked J. Denley and the team for the enormous amount of work being undertaken. 
Resolution: The Committee:

· NOTED the processes in place to monitor and improve performance delivery within the Mental Health and Learning Disabilities Care Group.
· NOTED the challenges faced in reporting performance data due to the mixed approaches to recording information.
· DISCUSSED the need for additional or different information in order to be assured that the performance was measured and reported effectively.
· DISCUSSED the ongoing requirements for performance reports from the Care Group. 
Action:
To query whether harm reviews are undertaken for patients waiting over six months for psychological therapies. 
Action:
To query the DNA rate for the CAMHS Service. 

6.0 SUSTAINING OUR FUTURE 


6.1.0
MONTH 12 FINANCE REPORT & PERFORMANCE REPORT 
S. May presented the report that highlighted the key messages in relation to the current month, year-to-date and forecast year-end financial position of the Health Board as at Month 10.
C. Donoghue referred to the worsening of the £3.1m in the forecast and said it would be useful to see how that occurred.  She also referred to the savings position which was of concern as it was not clear that there was a robust plan to deliver them and what the process around this entailed.  S. May advised that they were having to backfill, there was some improvement in planned care which they were not expecting and the approach to outsourcing, so there were lessons to be learned and they would be doing some further work with teams on the accounting approaches. She also advised that they had been ambitious plans for the WISE service that had not been spent. 
G. Hughes advised that they were developing the savings plans and the Project Management Office (PMO) were now working with the Care Groups with a complete focus on maturing their plans and ensuring clear current schemes were all good with clarity on delivery and monitoring. 
P. Roseblade referred to the contract and commission position and queried whether this had now settled and sought clarity as to whether they have the same budget.  S. May confirmed that some of the movement were for areas such as Velindre where they had made assumptions.  She advised that the team would need to work more closely with care providers to deliver more robust savings for next year. 
P. Roseblade queried whether this was ‘salami-slicing’.  S. May confirmed that they had issued controlled totals based on forecast outturn at Month 10 and then set a 2% savings target for everybody. 

N. Milligan referred to page 16 which referred to a nursing overspend of £3.9m and a £5m underspend on healthcare support workers (HCSW) and queried whether these were in fact agency HCSW. S. May advised that the overspend was, in the majority of cases, for HCSWs in unscheduled care.  G. Hughes, stated that another part of the overspend was due to catering assistant cover on the wards.  It was noted that in particular, there was difficulty in attracting people to take up HCSW posts in the Bridgend area.  

N. Milligan referred to the pilot that had been undertaken with nutritionists and the amount of money that had been saved with early discharges and less medication prescribed and suggested that it might be worth looking into.  
Resolution: The Committee NOTED the report. 
7.0.0 OTHER MATTERS 

7.1.0

HIGHLIGHT REPORT TO BOARD 
Resolution: The Committee AGREED that the report would be prepared by the 

Governance Team following the meeting. 
7.2.0

FORWARD WORK PLAN 

The Chair asked Members of the Committee if they had any items that they would like to include for future meetings to let the Governance Team know.  
Resolution: The Committee NOTED the Forward Work Plan 
7.3.0

ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS 


There was none. 

7.4.0
HOW DID WE DO TODAY?


The Committee felt that an appropriate balance had been struck in terms of open discussions with a strategic focus as well as organisational values being taken into account.  


The Chair advised that if anyone had any comments to feedback, they could do that outside of the meeting if they so wished. 
7.5.0
CLOSE OF THE MEETING – DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING:
The next full meeting of the Committee was scheduled to be held on 27th June 2023. 
PAGE  
	‘Confirmed’ minutes Planning, Performance & Finance Committee 

04.05.2023                                     
	Page 1 of 11
	Planning, Performance & Finance Committee          

27th June 2023



